HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
January 24, 2002
1:57 P. M

TAPE HFC 02 — 13, Side A
TAPE HFC 02 - 13, Side B
TAPE HFC 02 — 13, Side A

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair WIllianms called the House Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 1:57 P.M

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bill WIlIlianms, Co-Chair
Representati ve Con Bunde, Vice-Chair
Representative Eric Croft
Representati ve John Davi es
Representative Ri chard Foster
Representative Bill Hudson
Representati ve Ken Lancaster
Representative Carl Mses
Representative Ji m Wit aker

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve El don Mul der, Co-Chair
Representative John Harris

ALSO PRESENT

Representative Mary Kapsner; Senator Donald O son; P.J. Ford
Sl ack, Director, Teaching and Learning Support, Departnent
of Education & Early Devel opnent; Barbara Thonpson, Deputy
Director, Teaching and Learning Support, Department of
Education & Early Developnent; Louie Yannotti, Charter
School s, Social Studies, Teaching and Learning Support,
Depart ment of Education & Early Devel opnment; Annie Ml vain,
Al aska Municipal League; Tom Harvey, Executive Director,
NEA- Al aska.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Candy \Wauganan, President, Alaska Historical Soci ety,
Fai r banks; Mary Nordal e, Fairbanks; Joan Antonson, Ofice of
History & Archaeol ogy, Departnment of Natural Resources,
Anchor age; Bruce Parham Anchorage; Judy Bittner, Hi story &
Archaeol ogy, Departnent of Natural Resources, Anchorage;
Steve Haycox, University of Al aska-Anchorage, Anchorage; Ed
Earnhart, Anchorage; Elsa Sargento, Filipino Comunity &
Bridge Builders, Anchorage; Kathleen Dalton, Fairbanks;
Carol Coneau, Anchorage School Superintendent, Anchorage;
Ernie Line, Mat-Su; Darlene Hurbert, Fairbanks.

House Fi nance Committee 1 01/ 24/ 02 1:57 PM



SUMVARY

HB 171 An  Act relating to a curriculum for Al aska
hi story; and providing for an effective date.

HB 171 was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

HOUSE BILL NO. 171

An Act relating to a curriculumfor Al aska history; and
providing for an effective date.

REPRESENTATI VE MARY KAPSNER expl ained that understanding
Al aska State history is inportant to providing the context
of where Al askans cane from and what we as Al askan's val ue
about the diversity and richness of our State. It is
fundanmental to being informed and effective participants in
State and local affairs. An understanding of how Al aska's
econony and form of governnent developed is crucial to
under standing how to deal with today's issues.

Commonweal th North's study in 2000 on the urban/rural divide
in Alaska found that if nothing is done to address the

critical issues that divide Al askans, the result wll be an
increasingly fragnented State, wth discouraging economc
gromh and increasing social and cultural clashes. The

group put forth a set of recomendations and action itens,
i ncluding the teaching of Al aska history at the high schoo
| evel, and backed up the recommendation with an active
wor ki ng commi ttee.

Representative Kapsner noted that support has grown.
Resol uti ons were passed at the Al aska Federation of Natives
(AFN) Convention for the past three years calling for Al aska
hi story educati on. The Al aska Minicipal League issued a
policy statenment in support of civic education for students,
noting that teaching children how to understand and
i nfluence their governnment is critical to the well being of

Al aska. The Al aska Association of School Boards and the
Nati onal Education Association (NEA) Alaska support the
| egi sl ati on. The Depart nent of Education & Early

Devel opnent has worked with the legislative group to help
craft and tune the | anguage of HB 171.

Representati ve Kapsner advi sed t hat Car ol Coneau,
Superi ntendent of the Anchorage School System is currently
working on a curriculumfor the |egislation.

Representative Kapsner referenced the proposed conmttee
substitute, work draft #22-LS0070\R, Ford, 1/22/02. [Copy on
File]. She noted that the draft would up date the effective
dates fromlast year. The work draft also renoves | anguage

House Fi nance Committee 2 01/ 24/ 02 1:57 PM



regardi ng special education students because federal |[|aw
controls that requirenent. The draft also «clarifies
requirenents for students transferring into the Al aska
school systemin their junior or senior year.

Vi ce-Chair Bunde asked how many high schools in Alaska do
not have Al aska history as a requirenent.

Representati ve Kapsner replied that nine school districts do
not require Al aska history. That does not nean that they do
not offer it as an elective. However, it is not required.

Vi ce- Chair Bunde thought it outrageous that a | aw shoul d be
passed for such a small nunber of school districts. Vi ce-
Chair Bunde referenced the conmttee substitute. He
commented that the people who need to learn Al aska history
are the ones that are new to the State. He asserted that
those are the people that should be required to take it.

Representati ve Kapsner agreed, however, many of those new
students will need to prepare to pass the State exit exam
She stressed that the legislation was intended to be a great
first step.

Representati ve Hudson appl auded Representative Kapsner for

the | egislation. He addressed the additional noney that
woul d be needed in the classroomteaching area to inplenent
the program He pointed out the National Education
Association’s (NEA) endorsenent on the |egislation. He

asked about the devel opnent costs of the curriculum He
inquired if there would need to be additional noney placed
into the school systemto teach the curricul um

Representative Kapsner understood that the noney generated
by the fiscal note would be used to develop the material and
curriculum  She requested that the Departnent address that
questi on.

Representative \Witaker noted that he had co-sponsored the
bill. He acknow edged that there would be sone “tough”
questions asked from legislative nenbers. Representati ve
Wi t aker spoke to the Native & non-Native cultural clash and
his concern regarding that. He referenced the findings and
intent section, Section 3, Page 3, Line 19. He reflected on
the diversity within the Native culture. He pointed out
that the bill only indicates a Native studies conponent
regardl ess of the rich and diverse cultural history of the
St at e.

Represent ati ve Kapsner enphasized that it was not her intent

that HB 171 be a “Native” bill. She acknowl edged that it
does reference Native people. Many people in the public
school system have little or no reference at all to the
Nat i ve peopl e. Nati ve people have an oral tradition, not a

House Fi nance Committee 3 01/ 24/ 02 1:57 PM



literary tradition. Hence, nost books are not witten by
Native people. Consequently, she stated that it 1is
inperative to have at |east one section of the curriculum
devoted solely to the Native people of Al aska.

Representative Whitaker suggested that verbiage be added
that is inclusive of all cultures. He added that it is not
advant ageous to see ourselves as culturally separate. As an
institution, the State has to work toward a goal of
establishing an inclusive Al askan cul ture.

Representative Lancaster commended the sponsor. He voi ced
concern wth the "pile" of significant education bills,
whi ch are stacking up for consideration this session.

Representati ve Kapsner voiced her concern with being "l ost
in the dust". She stressed that many of the issues on the
table are divisive. She comented that HB 171 would act as
a unifier.

Representative Davies interjected his support of the
| egi sl ati on. He noted that nornmally he would not support
| egi sl ation that mandates a State requirenment, however, this
consideration is a central and core issue for the State. He
pointed out that there is a lack of understanding in the
history of Al aska, which plays a role in many of the
problens currently existing in the Legislature.

He added that in ternms of the budget, only $53,000 dollars
was being directed for training of teachers. He enphasized
that the request is a nodest anmobunt and that HB 171 is an
i nportant piece of |egislation.

Representative Foster MOVED to adopt the commttee
substitute for HB 171 as the version of the bill before the
Comm ttee. There being NO OBJECTION, it was adopt ed.

Representative Kapsner responded to comments nmade by
Representative Wiitaker. She stated that the Native Al askan
influence is unique within the State. Many of the European
influences in Alaska are simlar to those in other states.
Al askan Natives have an experience that is unlike any other
Native group in the world because of the Native Caim
Settlement Act (NCSA). There is a presunption that if you
are native, you belong to one of the thirteen Native
Cor por ati ons. She pointed out that all Natives born after
1971 do not belong to a Native Corporation.

Vice-Chair Bunde recomended that the Departnent of
Education & Early Devel opnment shoul d devel op the curriculum
He asked if |anguage would be included because there is no
confidence that the Departnment could address that portion of
t he program

House Fi nance Committee 4 01/ 24/ 02 1:57 PM



Representati ve Kapsner stated that had been a recommendati on
of Commonwealth North and various |eaders throughout the
State both Native and non-Nati ve.

P.J. FORD SLACK, DI RECTOR, TEACH NG AND LEARNI NG SUPPORT,
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATI ON & EARLY DEVELOPMENT, noted that the
Department does not often get involved in devel oping
curricul um Alaska is unique in the way that it does
t hi ngs. The proposed bill does have the support of the
entire Departnent and various groups statew de involved with
t he concern. Most districts have nmade this a requirenent
and if not a requirenment, an elective.

She added that the legislation was developed in
col l aboration with various interest groups, to guarantee
that it aligns with other work and is standards-based. The
Departnment wants to facilitate the program Ms. Sl ack
advi sed that the Depart nent has worked close wth
Superi ntendent Coneau from the Anchorage School District,
has i npl enented the plan al ready.

Ms. Slack acknow edged that there are questions with the
speci al education piece of the |egislation. She assured
nmenbers that the mgjority of special Ed students will know
their portion of Alaska history as well, but it would be up
to their Individual Pupil Unit (IPU) team to determ ne a
curriculumthat is appropriate for that student. Ms. Sl ack
stated that it has been recommended that piece of the
ver bi age be renoved. She did not recall that students from
out-of-state be exenpt from the requirenent. She assuned
that it could have been renoved for those new 11" & 12"
graders conming into the State, faced with the unique credit
requi renents that they will need to graduate.

Ms. Slack noted that as the person who oversees teacher
certification throughout the State, every entering educator
is required to take an Al aska focused credit.

She commented that the Departnent would take all pieces of
the legislation “to heart”. She referenced the recent
Al aska Native Educational Sem nar in Novenber 2001, in which
many people voiced support for the proposed | egislation.
She offered to answer questions regarding the fiscal note.

Co-Chair WIllianms noted his concern with the fiscal note.
He noted that wth only nine districts that do not have
Al aska history requirenent, why does an additional
curriculum need to be designed.

Ms. Slack responded that she did not know if the Departnent
could reduce the cost of the fiscal note. She pointed out
that the note takes into consideration developing a CD and
active web site, while nmaking sure that there is ownership
for the curriculum throughout the State. It is not a high

House Fi nance Committee 5 01/ 24/ 02 1:57 PM



stakes credit, but there be consistency. She enphasi zed
that it is inportant to keep that integrity. She noted the
various pieces creating one cohesive piece of information
t echnol ogi cal | y based.

Co-Chair WIllians asserted that there currently are 44
districts that have already taken ownership. He reiterated
to the Departnent that the Comnmttee was | ooking for ways to
reduce the fiscal note.

BARBARA THOMPSON, DEPUTY DI RECTOR, TEACHI NG AND LEARNI NG
SUPPORT, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION & EARLY DEVELOPMENT,
clarified that in neeting the provisions of the bill,
i ncluding a Al aska Native studies conponent, the State could
not guarantee that all 44 districts qualify for that
requirenment. Each district currently teaches differently.
Through the proposed legislation, it would unify what was
t aught .

Representati ve Hudson questioned if this was a course that
coul d be assuned by existing staff at various schools.

Ms. Slack responded that adding the class would be no
different from addi ng sonething el se nore conplicated to the
list. An Al aska study conponent is required of each teacher
in Alaska to have before they receive a Type A |license.
Many resources are available and it would not be sonething
where an additional burden would be placed on the school
staff. The only inpact concern to staff would be to have
the flexibility to take it into the mddle or high school
| evel .

Representative Hudson clarified that there would be no new
staff and that existing staff would not be replaced.

Ms. Sl ack responded that was correct.

Vice-Chair Bunde referenced Page 4, Line 2, "specia
education"”. He asked if that should be del eted.

Ms. Slack did not know if that |anguage should remain.

Vice-Chair Bunde commented that if there are 44 districts
that already have an Al askan history conponent, why would a
new course need to be created. He questioned the curricul um
and the diversity within the State of the Native culture.
He asked if it was the Departnent’s intent to develop a
curriculumthat would focus nore on each area individually.

Ms. Sl ack envisioned that the Al aska history conponent woul d
have a section for each cultural conponent throughout the
State, such as Native groups, Russian, Polish-Anmerican, etc.
She referenced the Alaska Native Network website devel oped

House Fi nance Committee 6 01/ 24/ 02 1:57 PM



out of Fairbanks. She acknow edged that the Departnent
coul d cover a broader vision.

TAPE HFC 02 - 13, Side B

Ms. Slack was not sure what each conponent would | ook Iike
but reiterated that it should include all pieces within the
Al aska history. The specifics would be left to each
i ndi vidual committee.

Vi ce- Chai r Bunde asked how | ong the course woul d be taught.

Ms. Slack replied that it would be a one-senester course,
approximately 12 weeks | ong.

Ms. Thonpson interjected that it could be either a stand-
al one course or specific pieces incorporated and taught
t hrough ot her courses.

Vice-Chair Bunde interjected that would be an interesting
chal  enge for the standard-based curricul um

Representative Croft asked about the nine districts that
currently have an Al aska studies course. He noted that sone
districts teach the course at the elenmentary school |evel
He noted that the course would need to be substantially
changed to be used for high school |evel.

Representative Croft asked what the curriculum chall enges
would be in Anchorage with the transfer of juniors and
seniors.

Ms. Thonpson did not know what had been deci ded.

ERNI E LINE, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), MAT-SU, thought
that it would be difficult to acconplish the |egislation by
July 1, 2001. He asked if a textbook would be included in
the curricul um

Representative Kapsner commented that the Departnent would
determne the materials to be used. She noted that the
first class that would be affected by the |egislation would
be the graduating class of 2007.

M. Line agreed that the Alaska studies program should be
executed in only high school.

JOAN ANTONSON, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), OFFICE OF
H STORY & ARCHAELOGY, DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES,
ANCHORAGE, offered to answer questions of the Commttee.
She noted that a textbook had been created and currently is
bei ng used. That textbook was conplete in 1986.

House Fi nance Committee 7 01/ 24/ 02 1:57 PM



JUDY BITTNER, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), HI STORY &
ARCHAEOLOGY, DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES, ANCHORAGE,
noted that the Departnent does support the |egislation.

Representative J. Davies asked if the Historical Conmm ssion
had di scussed the bill

Ms. Bittner stated that it has been discussed and that a
resol ution had been submtted in support.

STEVE HAYCOX, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), UNI VERSITY OF
ALASKA- ANCHORAGE, @ ANCHORAGE, testified support for the

| egi sl ati on. He supported having a textbook for the
curriculum He referenced Commonwealth North’s report in
support of a curriculum as proposed. He el aborated that

Al askans need greater ways of connecting and that the
proposed | egislation would help with that concern. History
provi des people a way to be human and how we share our place
on the planet, which helps us nmake better judgnents. He
stressed that the legislation would be valuable for the
young people of the State.

ED EARNHART, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), ANCHORAGE
voi ced support for the legislation. He enphasized that the
State has not yet cone together politically. He pointed out
that HB 171 calls for history and governnent to cone
together. He voiced caution with the State taking advantage
of the local school districts.

ELSA SARAGENTO, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), FILIPINO
COMVUNI TY & BRI DGE BUI LDERS, ANCHORAGE, voiced support for
the legislation. She urged that the Al aska studies program

be mandated for all Al askan children. An Al aska studies
requirenent is one way to teach many things to a child. Not
only will our youth learn about Al aska and their heritage,

they will understand that they are part of Al aska' s history.

CARCL COVEAU, (TESTIFIED VI A TELECONFERENCE), SUPERI NTENDANT
OF ANCHORAGE SCHOOLS, ANCHORAGE, stated that the Anchorage
School Board unani nously passed the recomendation that all
students take a one senester class in Al aska studies. She
pointed out that she personally had been working on this
I ssue since 1978.

Ms. Coneau added that many of today's young people do not
know how the State has gotten to where it is today. She
stressed that the Al askan young people need to be educated
regardi ng concerns such as the fiscal gap, Al askan Nationa
Wldlife Refuge (ANWR), subsistence and other concerns
t hroughout the State. M. Coneau naintained that this is a
maj or responsibility of the school districts. The tine has
cone to require it in every school. There should be a State
content standard and then each district should develop their

House Fi nance Committee 8 01/ 24/ 02 1:57 PM



own piece. The diversity of the State nust be honored. She
urged that the bill pass from Commttee.

Vi ce- Chai r Bunde questioned how | ocal school districts would
| ook at the proposal. He asked if they would consider it a
non- f unded mandat e.

Ms. Conmeau replied that sone districts mght feel that it is
an un-funded nmandate. She stressed that the value of the
issue is so inportant that it should be mandated. The on-
going cost wll result fromdoing solid teacher training.

Vi ce- Chair Bunde observed that it would be a 12-week course.
He questioned how much depth could be reached during that
time frane. He thought that the elenentary civic prograns
could do sone of the preparatory work. He commented that it
wi |l be challenging to achieve the intended success.

Ms. Coneau acknow edged the difficulty of having a quality
course in the tinme allotted. She responded that the topics
woul d need to be narrowed down to critical areas. Ms. Coneau
enphasi zed that standards need to be the core of the
program She did not anticipate a struggle wth the
Department of Education and Early Developnent on the
curricul um

Vi ce- Chair Bunde wondered if the Anchorage area woul d have a
section on the Native contribution to the State as part of
the course curriculum

Ms. Conmeau replied that they absolutely woul d.

In response to queries by Representative Lancaster, M.
Comeau did not think the teacher shortage would inpact the
program She stated that it was the districts obligation to
devel op an excellent training package for the course and
keep it going locally on an on-going basis. There are nmany
comunity builders who are willing to work in keeping it

goi ng.

DARLENE HURBERT, (TESTIFIED VI A TELECONFERENCE), FAlI RBANKS,
voi ced support of the |legislation. She enphasized the
i nportance of sharing Al aska history and expressed hope that
it would reduce prejudice.

CANDY WAUGAMAN, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), PRESI DENT,
ALASKA HI STORI CAL SOCI ETY, FAI RBANKS, voiced support for HB
171. She enphasized that the |egislation would provide an
understanding of Alaska's past. She nmintained that the
fiscal cost is reasonable. The legislation would not add to
credits needed to graduate or take away from ot her prograns.

MARY NORDALE, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), FAI RBANKS,
testified in support of HB 171. The State Board of

House Fi nance Committee 9 01/ 24/ 02 1:57 PM



Education stated that a student should be able to integrate
hi stori cal know edge wth historical skill to fully
participate as a citizen. Anmong the tests used to define
that standard, a student should be able to define a personal
position on issues while wunderstanding the historical
outcone of positions and rules. It is crucial for Alaska
that we develop a way to understand one another and have a
comon ground. HB 171 would be a start.

ANNI E MCI LVAIN, ALASKA MUNI Cl PAL LEAGUE, JUNEAU, spoke in
support of the bill. She noted that the League has
contracted for the devel opnent of a curriculumthat could be
used. The curriculum would consist of nodules for teachers
to use in K-12 throughout Al aska. It would be a web-based
nodul e that any teacher could use for Al aska history.

TOM  HARVEY, EXECI Tl VE DI RECTOR, NEA- ALASKA, JUNEAU,
testified that the National Education Association (NEA) is
in support of HB 171 because it is:

. St ate standards based;

. Provides for a local delivery and devel opnent
mechani sm

. Does provide a neans for NEA to provide children

the essential resources of know edge to be good
citizens, which addresses Al aska's diversity.

M. Harvey noted that NEA has |earned many coll aboration
| essons. He stated that NEA believes that the fiscal note
coul d be reduced. There are resources around the State that
coul d address those resource and delivery issues.

Vice-Chair Bunde expressed his appreciation for NEA' s
willingness to help with lowering the costs. He questioned
how t he st andards-based i dea could be devel oped.

M. Harvey felt that State-based standards could be
addressed as long is there was an understanding of what
those standards are and then there was cooperation wthin
the staff.

Vice-Chair Bunde observed that there will need to be an
assessnent.

M. Harvey explained that NEA-Alaska is not in support of
high stake testing, however, agreed that the assessnents
coul d be made.

TAPE HFC 02 - 14, Side A

House Fi nance Committee 10 01/ 24/ 02 1:57 PM



Vi ce- Chair Bunde MOVED to del ete | anguage on Page 4, Line 2
(3) "special education” has the mnmeaning given in AS
14. 30. 350”". There being NO OBJECTION, the |anguage was
del et ed.

Co-Chair WIllians expressed his desire to hear nore
testinony from the school districts affected by the change.
He encouraged the Departnent to address the proposed costs
associated with the fiscal note.

HB 171 was HELD in Conmttee for further consideration.

ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 3:33 P. M

House Fi nance Committee 11 01/ 24/ 02 1:57 PM



